
 

                                                                
                                                                                                  
 

 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC MEETING 
AGENDA 

MARCH 15, 2021 
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, MARCH 15, 2021 AT 2:30 PM. TO JOIN 
THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346- 248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 
 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV.  *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Meeting of MARCH 1, 2021. 
B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS  

Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061185 – 1857 Paisano Road, submitted by Barry Byrnes, a request for a zoning permit to allow the 

applicant to replace two bathroom windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF)  
 

II. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A. PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES 

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read 
into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by 
phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. You will 
be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking. 

 
B. DECISIONS:  
 Summary Subdivision 

1. Case 061172 – 2445 Calle de Parian, submitted by Steve Delgado and Victoria Hernandez; a request for a 
summary subdivision to remove a lot line between two properties at the rear of a residential property at this 
address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

Zoning Permits 
2. Case 061170 – 1915 Calle Pacana, submitted by Charles and Marilyn McMurry; a request for a zoning permit 

to allow the construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic 
Residential (HR)  

3. Case 061171 – 2649 Calle del Sur, submitted by Paul Barraza; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
applicant to enclose a car port on an existing dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  

4. Case 061173 – 2445 Calle de Parian, submitted by Steve Delgado and Victoria Hernandez; a request for a 
zoning permit to allow the construction of a covered porch on the rear of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Historic Residential (HR) 

5. Case 061174 – 2011 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Grady Oxford for “The Bean Café”; a request for a 
zoning permit to allow the applicant to replace the front doors on a coffee shop on a property at this address. 
Zoned Historic Commercial (HC)   

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

6. Case 061175- Camino del Reyes, Lot 4 (address to be assigned), submitted by Fernando Chavez; a request for 
a zoning permit to allow the applicant to construct a new dwelling on a vacant property at this address. Zoned 
Residential, one-acre minimum lot size (R1). 

7. Case 061176– 1305 Tierra de Mesilla, submitted by Blanca Huizar for “Casa Blanka; A request for a zoning 
permit to allow the applicant to construct a six foot high decorative iron fence around a commercial property at 
this address zoned General Commercial (C). 

8. Case 061177 – 2510 Calle de Parian, submitted by Stephan Carrasco, a request for a zoning permit to allow 
installation of two antique wood gates and a six foot high rock wall to be constructed along the west edge of a 
residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

9. Case 061178– 2957 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Vivian Herrera; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the applicant to enclose an existing patio on the east side of a dwelling located on a legal non-conforming 0.45 
acre parcel at this address. Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RA) 

10. Case 061179 – 2532 Calle de Cura, submitted by Ralph Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to allow a small 
tool shed on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

11. Case 061180– 2149 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Gabriel Quintana; A request for a zoning permit to 
allow the applicant to construct a 30 foot by 22 foot (660 square feet) freestanding carport on a 12,632 square 
foot residential property at this address. Zoned Historic Residential (HR) 

12. Case 061181 – 2750 Via Grande, submitted by Victor Sloan; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
installation of a 20 foot by 40 foot inground pool behind an existing dwelling at this address. Zoned Rural Farm 
(RF) 

13. Case 061182– 1717 Boutz Road, Apartments 3 & 4, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning permit 
to allow the applicant to repair and repaint the exterior stucco and close off two exterior doors on two apartments 
at this address. Zoned Historic Residential (HR). 

14. Case 061183 – 501 Lucerne Court, submitted by Armando Reyna; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
applicant to construct a five foot high rock wall around the front yard of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Residential, one acre minimum new lot size.  

Sign Permit 
15. Case 061184 – 2309 #3 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Jennifer Tyson for “Co-Lab Artisans Loft”; a request 

for a sign permit to allow the applicant to install an on-premises directory sign on part of a commercial property 
on which the store is located.  Zoned Historic Commercial (HC). 

 
VI.  PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE 
If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact us at 
524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Posted on 3/11/2021 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public Safety Building - 2670 Calle de 
Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Avenida de Mesilla  
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC 
MARCH 1, 2021 

REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

 
 

[PART OF CONSENT AGENDA] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

                                                                
                                                                                                  
 

 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC MEETING 
MINUTES 

MARCH 1, 2021 
 

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, MARCH 1, 2021 AT 2:30 PM. TO JOIN 
THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346- 248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 
 
 
I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

Commission Chairperson Lucero and Commissioners Salas, Nevarez, and Prieto were present. Commissioner Houston 
was absent. There was a quorum. 
Other attendees:  

Larry Shannon (Mesilla Staff) Tom Maese (Chief Inspector-CID) 
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

There were no changes to the Agenda.  Commissioner Prieto made a motion to approve the Agenda, seconded by 
Commissioner Salas, and approved by the PZHAC by a vote of 4 – 0. 

 
IV.  *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 

Commission Chair Lucero requested that Case 061168 be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion. 
Commissioner Nevarez made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended, seconded by Commissioner 
Salas, and approved as amended by the PZHAC by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 
A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Meeting of February 16, 2021. 

Approved as part of the Consent Agenda. 
 

B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS  
Zoning Permit: 

1. Case 061168 – 1717 West Boutz Road, apartments 3 and 4, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning 
permit to allow alterations to the interiors of the two apartments. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
Staff provided a brief outline of the case, explain that since the work involved was only to the interior of the 
structure, there were no zoning issues, therefore the PZHAC did not have jurisdiction over the work being 
done. Staff also explained that the applicant was planning to obtain a permit for work that was going to be 
done to the outside of the structure and that this would be brought before the PZHAC for review and 
approval.  
Tom Maese (Chief Inspector, CID) stated that the windows may need to be replaced and that this could 
affect the exterior. He also stated that a permit should be obtained if the doors were to be removed. A separate 
permit should be issued for the doors and windows. 
Commissioner Nevarez stated that the permit should be issues with the condition that the permit be for 
interior work only, and that a separate permit be issues for the doors and windows. 
Commissioner Nevarez made a motion to approve Permit 061168 with the condition stated, seconded by 
Commissioner Salas, and approved by the PZHAC by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 
 
 



 

II. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A. PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES 

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read 
into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by 
phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. You will 
be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking. 
There was no Public Input 

 
B. DECISIONS:  

Zoning Permits 
1. Case 061169 – 2445 Calle de Santa Ana, submitted by Jack and Lisa Kirby; a request for a zoning permit to 

allow the construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential 
(HR)  
Staff provided a brief review of this request. There were no issues.  Tom Maese stated that no permits were 
needed from CID. Staff stated that it would be a good idea if CID could inspect the foundation prior to 
construction of the wall. Commissioner Nevarez a motion to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner 
Prieto, and APPROVED by the PZHAC by a vote of 4 – 0 
 

2. Case 061170 – 1915 Calle Pacana, submitted by Charles and Marilyn McMurry; a request for a zoning permit 
to allow the construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic 
Residential (HR)  
Staff provided a brief review of this request. A question was brought up as tp how the applicant was going to 
handle the irrigation easement that the wall would have to go over at the rear of the property. It was 
determined by the PZHAC that a decision on this case wud be postponed in order to five the applicant a chanze 
to address this issue. Commissioner Nevarez a motion to postpone the request, seconded by Commissioner 
Salas, and approved by the POSTPONED by a vote of 4 – 0 
 
 

VI.  PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS 
There were no comments. 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:14 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE 
If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact us at 
524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Posted on 2/25/2021 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public Safety Building - 2670 Calle de 
Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Avenida de Mesilla  
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 

 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 
MARCH 15, 2021 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 
[PART OF CONSENT AGENDA] 

 
 

  













 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 
MARCH 15, 2021 

 
DECISION ITEMS 

SUMMARY SUBDIVISION 
 
 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061172 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
Item: 
Case 061172 – 2445 Calle de Parian, submitted by Steve Delgado and Victoria Hernandez; a request for a summary 
subdivision to remove a lot line between two properties at the rear of a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic 
Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant currently has two properties at this address. The property that contains the dwelling borders Calle de Parian 
on the north side and is 6,970 square feet in size. The second property is directly behind the first and is 4,792 square feet in 
size. The two properties were originally one property that was split prior to 1972. The applicant would like to eliminate the 
lot line between the two properties and create one property 11,762 square feet in size. The reason for this is to allow the 
applicant to construct a covered porch on the rear of the existing dwelling without encroaching on a property line. 
Additionally, the second property was not a buildable lot because it did not have legal access from a street.  

Estimated Cost: N/A 

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the wall will be consistent with Chapters 18.33 (Historic Preservation) 
and 18.35 (HR-Residential Cultural Historic zone) of the Code. 

18.35.040 Development standards. 
A. Lot Area. Each lot or parcel to be developed in the H-R zone shall have a minimum of 80 feet of frontage on a 

public street and a minimum of 8,000 square feet of area. 
 
B. Population Density. When lots or parcels in the H-R zone are to be developed to single-family or multiple single-

family dwellings, each lot or parcel shall have sufficient area to provide 8,000 square feet of area for each family 
unit to be built. The maximum number of dwellings allowed on any property shall be two, providing density and 
parking requirements are met. A maximum of 40 percent impervious and 60 percent pervious shall be required 
unless otherwise noted by the development zone requirements of Chapter 18.33 MTC (Historic Preservation). 

 
C. New Construction. New structures and modifications to existing structures may be built in this zone, providing the 

exterior appearance of the structure is approved by the PZHAC for compliance with Chapter 18.33 MTC (Historic 
Preservation) and the comprehensive land use ordinance for the town, with final approval by the BOT. 

 
1. New structures on properties containing existing structures shall be architecturally similar to the principal 

dwelling or structure on the property and shall not exceed the height or size of the principal dwelling or structure 
on the property.18.35.030 Exterior appearance. 
An application for a permit which would authorize construction, modification, moving or destruction 
which would affect the exterior appearance of any structure, sign, or other improvement affecting use or 
function must first be approved by the commission. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-11.4.C] 

 
D. Yards. For all new buildings, front, side and rear yard must be at least seven feet. 

 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The request consists of removing a lot line to combine two adjacent lots at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the resulting property meets all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 









 
 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 
MARCH 15, 2021 

 
DECISION ITEMS 

ZONING PERMITS 
 

  



 
 PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061170 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

Item: 
Case 061170 – 1915 Calle Pacana, submitted by Charles and Marilyn McMurry; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to build a rock wall around a residence that has been built on this property in the past year. The 
wall range in height from about two feet at the south end of the east property line to six feet in height at the 
rear property line on the north side of the property to five feet in height at the south end of the west property 
line (see attached site plan). The wall will be located just inside the rear property line, but a “Right-of-entry” 
form will still be required due to the proximity of the wall to the property line, The wall will connect with 
the southwest side of the dwelling. The wall will not extend past the front of the dwelling and will not affect 
the clear-sight-triangle of the driveway. This rock wall will be similar in style and color to other rock walls constructed 
on property lines in the area (see attached site plan for the proposed location of the walls).  
 
This case was postponed at the March 1, 2021 PZHAC meeting in order to allow the applicant to address the issue 
of how the wall would cross a ten foot irrigation easement at the north side of the property. The applicant has 
responded by channeling the irrigation easement through a conduit under the wall on both sides of the property (see 
the attached drawing provided by an engineer for the applicant).   

Estimated Cost: $10,000.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed rock wall is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall will be consistent with other walls in the Town. The PZHAC 
will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building and 
Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 



 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a rock wall around an existing dwelling at this address. 
• The applicant has provided a “Right-of-Entry” agreement for each of the properties that will be adjacent to the wall. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
  





edge of footing on N. property line

typical rock wall footing

natural ground

typical #4 rebar continuous

10" schedule 80 water pipe

wall running E-W

walls running N-S

1'-4"

3'-4"
min.

min.

10" schedule
80 pipe

ELEVATION VIEW

PLAN VIEW

nts
Dec 29, 2020

.Drawn By: Patrick Vigil ViCa One Inc.

575-644-3748 Mesilla Park, NM
PO Box 669Drawn for: Charles and Marilyn Mc Murray

1915 Calle Pacana

Mesilla , NM 88046
Lot 2, Sommer Grove Subdivision

SITE PLAN FOR ROCK WALL













 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061171 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

 

Item: 
Case 061171 – 2649 Calle del Sur, submitted by Paul Barraza; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to enclose 
a car port on an existing dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to enclose a two car carport on an existing dwelling at this address. The carport is currently part 
of the dwelling and is open on the north and west sides. The applicant would like to continue the wall along the west side 
of the carport, in line with the dwelling, to the front of the carport. There will be two small windows in this wall of the 
garage to allow air circulation in the garage. The front of the carport will be enclosed by a wall and a white double wide 
garage door without windows (see attached diagram). The walls enclosing the carport will be stuccoed to match the dwelling. 
The applicant would like to enclose the carport for security purposes.  
 
Enclosure of the existing carport will not have a negative effect on the number of off-street parking spaces currently available 
on the property. 

Estimated Cost: $5,000.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed garage is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed garage on the dwelling will be consistent with other dwellings in 
the Town. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the proposed garage will not reduce the number 
of required off-street parking spaces (three spaces) on the property and will be consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of enclosing an open carport on an existing dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed garage will meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
  













 
 

PZHAC ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT 061173 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Item: 
Case 061173 – 2445 Calle de Parian, submitted by Steve Delgado and Victoria Hernandez; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow the construction of a covered porch on the rear of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis:  
The applicant would like to add a covered porch to the rear of a dwelling at this address. The roof will extend across 
the rear of the dwelling and will extend sixteen feet from the dwelling into the backyard, covering a patio at the rear 
of the dwelling (see attached site plan). The porch will consist of a metal roof on 2” by 6” joists supported by 4” by 4” 
posts (see construction diagram). Drainage will be onto the back yard of the property.  
 
This property is currently the subject of a Summary Subdivision request to eliminate a lot line between two properties 
at this address. This zoning application for the porch is contingent on the elimination of the lot line in order for the 
porch to meet the setback requirements of the HR zoning district. The lot line removal is to be accomplished through 
a Summary Subdivision request scheduled to be heard earlier in this meeting.   

Estimated Cost: $600.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed porch is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed porch will be consistent with other similar structures in the Town. 
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a porch at the rear of an existing dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed porch will meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  















 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061174 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 
Item: 
Case 061174 – 2011 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Grady Oxford for “The Bean Café”; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow the applicant to replace the front doors on a coffee shop on a property at this address. Zoned Historic Commercial (HC) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to replace two wood framed doors that have multiple panes of glass with two very similar 
doors having a single pane of glass each (see attached drawing of replacement doors) for security purposes. The 
applicant has stated that the larger single pane of glass will be tempered and will be more resistive to breaking. 
Additionally, having a single pane of glass will enable him to place a small sign inside each door without the signs 
being blocked by the framework of the door. 
 
The door frames, which will also be replaced, will be painted to match the color of the original doors. No other work 
will be done on the structure. 

Estimated Cost: $2,440.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed doors are consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed doors will be consistent with other commercial structures in the 
Town. The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of replacing two entrance doors on an existing commercial building at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed doors will meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
 













 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061175 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 
Case 061175 - Camino del Reyes, Lot 4 (address to be assigned), submitted by Fernando Chavez; a request for a zoning 
permit to allow the applicant to construct a new dwelling on a vacant property at this address. Zoned Residential, one-acre 
minimum lot size (R1). 
 
Description of Request: 
The subject property is currently vacant and is a one acre lot located in a subdivision containing nine other similar sized lots. 
Four of the other lots contain dwellings that have either been competed or are currently under construction. These are similar 
in size to the proposed dwelling. 
 
The dwelling will have three bedrooms and will have a total of 5,193 square feet of framed area with 3,270 square feet in 
heated and cooled area and about 811 square feet in a three-car garage. There will also be an enclosed swimming pool of 
651 square feet. The dwelling will be single story with a tiled pitched roof having a maximum height of about 22 feet at the 
peak of the roof.  A chimney will extend about three more feet.  These heights are consistent with the other two dwellings 
that have been built in the subdivision. 
 
Access to the dwelling will be from set back from Rosita Court. Liquid waste disposal will be handled by a septic tank. 
Water is available by a water line operated by the Town. There are no plan for a casita or guest house at this time. 
  
A survey is attached showing the pad site as well as floor plans for the dwelling. Also included is a set of elevations for the 
dwelling. According to the applicant, the style and color of the dwelling will be appropriate for the other dwellings in the 
subdivision.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $500,000.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed dwelling, when finished, will be consistent with the zoning requirements 
for this property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all 
other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. The proposed dwelling and casita appear 
to meet the requirements of Section 18.30 (R-1 Single Family Residential Zone) of the Code for new construction.   
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of building a new dwelling on a property at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed structure meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the zoning permit.   
2. Approve the zoning permit with conditions.  
3.   Reject the zoning permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  

















 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061176 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Case 061176 – 1305 Tierra de Mesilla, submitted by Blanca Huizar for “Casa Blanka”; A request for a zoning permit to allow 
the applicant to construct a six foot high decorative iron fence around a commercial property at this address zoned General 
Commercial (C). 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to install a six foot high decorative iron fence (see attached photo of example) on the property 
line around a commercial property at this address (see attached site plan). The purpose of this fence will be two-fold. 
The first is to provide security to the property when the property is being developed. The second is to provide security 
for the applicant’s commercial operation once the property is developed.  
 
Since the fence meets UBC fire-resistive requirements, the required setbacks along the property lines for properties in 
the General Commercial (C) are three feet for each property line (MTC18.45.040 – Development Standards). The 
attached site plan shows that the six foot high fence meets this requirement along Avenida de Mesilla, but not along 
Tierra de Mesilla. Additionally, MTC 18.45.040(N) also requires that the fence be six feet in height along the southern 
property line which abuts property zoned Rural Farm (RF). 
 
Since the requested fence is not solid and  
 

Estimated Cost: $2,440.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed fence is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their setting. 
A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically appropriate 

development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and alterations to 
existing structures. 

 
18.45.040 Development standards. 
D. Yards. 

3. In the event the structure meets UBC fire-resistive requirements, then the setback requirement for any yard in the C 
zone shall be a minimum of three feet. 

 



 
N. Perimeter Wall or Fencing. A uniform six-foot high perimeter wall or fencing, measured from natural ground surface 

level, shall be installed by the subdivider and/or developer between commercial development in the C zone and 
adjacent residential development or adjacent agricultural development to provide privacy to the homeowner and 
protection to the farmer from urban encroachment. The wall/fence shall be maintained by the developer if so designated 
by covenant or other document or by the property owner. The planning and zoning commission shall determine if the 
standards and design proposed for the wall/fence are adequate and appropriate. Cross Reference: MTC 17.30.030, 
Alley location. 

 
O. Wall, Fencing, Hedge, C Zone. 

1. Height. A three-foot maximum height above natural ground surface level shall be permitted on any part of the 
required setback in the front yard and a four-foot maximum height above natural ground surface level shall be 
permitted on any part of the required set back in the side yards; provided, the height of such wall, fence or hedge is 
in accord with subsection (O)(2) of this section. 

2.  Clear Sight Triangle. There shall be no fence, wall, hedge or obstruction more than three feet above the street curb 
level or natural ground surface level at the edge of the street in the clear sight triangle, measured 30 feet in both 
directions on the property line from a corner. 

3. Materials. Walls or fences constructed in the C zone must be built with the following materials only: stucco, brick, 
stone, wood, adobe or decorative iron. Decorative iron is defined as iron made from square or rectangular shaped 
iron and it may be used in the C zone for fencing alone or in combination with the other allowed materials mentioned 
above in this subsection. 

4. Other Restrictions. All other restrictions and conditions appearing in MTC 18.60.340, Wall, fence, or hedge, and 
applying to the C zone are included here by reference. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed fence will be consistent with other commercial fences in the Town. 
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of installing a six foot high decorative iron fence around a commercial property at this 
address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed fence will meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  











 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061177 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Item: 
Case 061177 – 2510 Calle de Parian, submitted by Stephan Carrasco, a request for a zoning permit to allow installation of 
two antique wood gates and a six foot high rock wall to be constructed along the west edge of a residential property at this 
address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to build a rock wall along the west property line of a residential property at this address (see 
attached site plan). The rock wall will replace an existing wood fence on the property line that is deteriorating. The 
wall will be part of an overall landscaping plan for the property and will match the existing walls along the north and 
east sides of the property. The gates on either side of the dwelling to the rear yard will replaced by an antique Mexican 
gates six feet wide and eight feet high. The wall will be six feet high by 1.5 feet wide on a two foot square footing 
(see construction diagram). 

Estimated Cost: $10,000.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall and gate is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall and gate will be consistent with other walls in the Town. The 
PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building 
and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a rock wall and antique wood gate along the west property line of a 
residential lot at this address.  
• The applicant has provided or will obtain a “Right-of-Entry” agreement for the property that is be adjacent to the wall. 



 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  













 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061178 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
 
Case 061178 – 2957 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Vivian Herrera; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant 
to enclose an existing patio on the east side of a dwelling located on a legal non-conforming 0.45 acre parcel at this address. 
Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RA) 
 
Description of Request: 
The applicant would like to enclose a small porch that is at an entrance to the dwelling. The subject property is 0.45 acres in 
size and is currently occupied by a single family dwelling. As a result of a legal opinion obtained by the PZHAC in August 
of 2020, this is a legal non-conforming property since it is less than the three acres in size required by the Rural/Agricultural 
(RA) zoning of the property. However, since the porch already exists and the enclosure will not increase the size of the 
dwelling’s footprint, the PZHAC has determined in other cases that this is not an expansion of a legal non-conforming use of 
the property.  
 
The enclosure will not change the overall appearance or stye of the dwelling. 
 
Estimated Cost: @ $9,800.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed dwelling, when finished, will be consistent with the zoning requirements 
for this property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all 
other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. The proposed dwelling and casita appear 
to meet the requirements of Section 18.30 (R-1 Single Family Residential Zone) of the Code for new construction.   
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of building a new dwelling on a property at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed structure meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
3. Approve the zoning permit.   
4. Approve the zoning permit with conditions.  
3.   Reject the zoning permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  

















 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061179 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Item: 
Case 061179 – 2532 Calle de Cura, submitted by Ralph Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to allow a small tool shed on a 
residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to build a small (80 square feet) wooden tool shed at the rear of a dwelling at this address. The 
shed will be located seven feet from the nearest property line and will be a portable structure that will not be anchored 
to the property (see attached construction plan). This will not be a permanent structure. There will not be electricity 
connected to the shed. 

Estimated Cost: $200.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed shed is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed shed will be consistent with other walls in the Town. The PZHAC 
will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building and 
Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a small shed at the rear of an existing dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
 
 



 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
  













 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061180 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Item: 
Case 061180 – 2149 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Gabriel Quintana; A request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant 
to construct a 30 foot by 22 foot (660 square feet) freestanding carport on a 12,632 square foot residential property at this 
address. Zoned Historic Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to build a 22 foot by 30 foot wood carport at the rear of a residential property at this address. 
The carport will be open on three sides and will have an 8 foot by 22 foot enclosed storage shed at the east end. There 
will be a half-wall across the rear side, with entrances to the carport on the opposite side (see attached floorplans and 
photo of example). The carport will match the style of the covered porches that are attached to the dwelling on the 
property.  
 
The carport will meet all required setbacks of seven feet from the property lines, and ten feet from the dwelling. Drainage 
will be onto the subject property. Access will be from a driveway on the property.  

Estimated Cost: $10,000.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed carport and shed is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed carport and shed will be consistent with other walls in the Town. 
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the 
Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of constructing a carport and shed at the rear of an existing dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
  















 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061181 
 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Case 061181 – 2750 Via Grande, submitted by Victor Sloan; a request for a zoning permit to allow the installation of a 20 
foot by 40 foot inground pool behind an existing dwelling at this address. Zoned Rural Farm (RF) 
 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The applicant would like to install a 20 foot by 40 foot in-ground swimming pool in an enclosed area in the backyard 
behind an existing dwelling on the property. The pool will be set about 100 feet from the dwelling (see attached site 
plans). The pool will have an automatic safety cover in lieu of a fence around the pool. This is a five acre property 
and the dwelling and yard are located at about the middle of the property. There is also a large storage 
building that runs parallel with the southwest edge of the property.  
 
Since the property is in the Rural Farm (RF) zoning district, there are no architectural or historical guidelines that need 
to be met for the pool. Safety or security fencing may be required around the pool by the Building Code or by CID. 
 
ESTIMATED COST: @ $89,750.00 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE CODE: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed pool will be compatible with the RF Zoning of the property. 
(Although the Code does not specifically address swimming pools, private pools are generally considered to be an 
ancillary or subordinate use to the residential use of a property and have generally been allowed in the RF districts in 
Town provided they meet requirements governed by CID.) 
 
In addition to meeting the Mesilla zoning code requirements, the applicant will need to meet construction standards 
and any fencing or other safety measures required by CID for this type of pool. The possibility that additional 
safety requirements could be required by CID has been discussed with the applicant, and the applicant is prepared 
to meet any additional requirements that CID might have. 

Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of installing an in-ground swimming pool on a residential property at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

1. Approve the request. 
2. Approve the request with conditions. 
3. Reject the request. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



























 
 

PZHAC ACTION FORM 
BUILDING PERMIT 061182 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Item: 
Case 061182– 1717 Boutz Road, Apartments 3 & 4, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
applicant to repair and repaint the exterior stucco and close off two exterior doors on two apartments at this address. Zoned 
Historic Residential (HR). 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant is in the process of renovating the insides of these two apartments (Permit 061168). Part of these 
renovations includes sealing off one exterior door in each apartment. The applicant will create a nicho inside each 
apartment where the door had been located. The exterior locations of the doors will be framed in and covered with 
stucco to match the exterior of the structure. Other than sealing off the doors, there will be no other changes to the 
appearance of the exterior of the structure. The remainder of the stucco on the structure will be repaired and the 
structure repainted in a color that is identical or very similar to the existing color. There will be no changes to the 
existing style of the structure. 

Estimated Cost: $4,500.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed work is consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) shall 

be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall determine 
whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be determined to be 
inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the building or structure 
involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved without substantial 
detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in addition 
to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 

8.33.060 Development zone. 
A development zone defines the immediate physical vicinity to be used to identify the historic character of a particular 
area and includes the predominant architectural style and design standards of existing structures together with their 
setting. 

A. Function of the Development Zone. The function of the development zone is to provide for historically 
appropriate development within an existing historic district by setting standards for both new construction and 
alterations to existing structures. 

 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of sealing of two exterior doors and refinishing the exterior of the structure along with 
repairing and repainting the stucco on the apartment structure at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
 



 
 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
  













 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061170 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

Case 061183– 501 Lucerne Court, submitted by Armando Reyna; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to 
construct a five foot high rock wall around the front yard of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential, one acre minimum 
new lot size.  

Description of Request: 
The applicant was in the process of building a five foot high rock wall around a portion of the front yard near the street without 
a permit when she was reported by CID and stopped by staff.  The applicant was told that a permit would be needed for the 
wall and that the plans would need to be reviewed and approved by the PZHAC before work could continue. According to 
the homeowner, she was able to build a six foot high rock wall along Capri Road about ten or eleven years ago and was told 
at that time that she did not need permit from the Town. The homeowner has stated that the purpose of this wall is to give her 
grandchildren a place to safely play in the front yard. 
 
The contractor for the homeowner has applied for a permit for this wall, which is almost complete. The wall matches the style 
and appearance of the other walls on the property. Since this wall is not along a shared property line, a Right-of-Entry 
agreement is not needed. 
 
When finished, the wall will actually enhance the overall appearance or stye of the dwelling. 
 
Estimated Cost: @ $2,200.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall, when finished, will be consistent with the zoning requirements 
for this property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all 
other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. The proposed dwelling and casita appear 
to meet the requirements of Section 18.30 (R-1 Single Family Residential Zone) of the Code for new construction.   
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of building a new rock wall on a property at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed structure meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the zoning permit.   
2. Approve the zoning permit with conditions.  
3.   Reject the zoning permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 









 
 
 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 
MARCH 15, 2021 

 
DECISION ITEMS 
SIGN PERMITS 

 
 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUILDING PERMIT 061184 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 3/15/2021] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
Item: 
Case 061184 – 2309 #3 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Jennifer Tyson for “Co-Lab Artisans Loft”; a request for a sign 
permit to allow the applicant to install an on-premise directory sign on part of a commercial property on which the store is 
located.  Zoned Historic Commercial (HC). 

Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to change the content of a directory sign located at the corner of Calle de Guadalupe and Calle 
de Santiago that was previously approved by the PZHAC for another business that had been at the applicant’s location 
in order to alert customers to the existence of her shop around the corner on Calle de Santiago. (This same sign was 
originally approved by the PZHAC and used by the Tea shop “Be Infused” when it was located in the same location 
on Calle de Santiago as the applicant’s shop.) The sign is located on the same premises as the applicant’s shop. There 
are a two other tenants on this property. 

Estimated Cost: $150.00  

Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the wall will be consistent the following section of the Code: 

18.65.165 Directory signs. 
A.  A directory sign may be permitted for a building or development where there is more than one business or tenant. A 

directory sign may be a wall sign, projecting sign, or freestanding sign, provided the sign complies with all 
requirements for the type of sign. 

B.  A directory sign shall be limited to 15 square feet in area for signs located in the Historical Commercial (H-C zone) 
zone and 25 square feet in area for signs located in the Commercial (C) zone. 

C.  All directory signs shall be located on the premises where the businesses are located. 
D.  A directory sign may list all businesses or only the building or development name. 
E.  Each business may have one individual sign in addition to the identification on the directory sign, in accordance with 

the sign regulations and all other laws and ordinances. 
 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall will be consistent with signs in the Town. The PZHAC will 
also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building and Zoning 
Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings that need to be made: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of changing the content of a directory sign that was previously approved for this location.  
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed wall meet all applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the zoning permit to the BOT with conditions. 
3. Reject the application. 

  
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 
  










	THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, MARCH 15, 2021 AT 2:30 PM. TO JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346- 248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD ...
	II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM
	III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	IV.  *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA
	A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Meeting of MARCH 1, 2021.
	II. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS:
	Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by phone and pressing *9 while in th...
	2. Case 061170 – 1915 Calle Pacana, submitted by Charles and Marilyn McMurry; a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)
	3. Case 061171 – 2649 Calle del Sur, submitted by Paul Barraza; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to enclose a car port on an existing dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)
	4. Case 061173 – 2445 Calle de Parian, submitted by Steve Delgado and Vivial Hernandez; a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction of a covered porch on the rear of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)
	5. Case 061174 – 2011 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Grady Oxford for “The Bean Café”; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to replace the front doors on a coffee shop on a property at this address. Zoned Historic Commercial (HC)
	6. Case 061175- Camino del Reyes, Lot 4 (address to be assigned), submitted by Fernando Chavez; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to construct a new dwelling on a vacant property at this address. Zoned Residential, one-acre minimum ...
	7. Case 061176– 1305 Tierra de Mesilla, submitted by Blanca Huizar for “Casa Blanka; A request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to construct a six foot high decorative iron fence around a commercial property at this address zoned General Com...
	8. Case 061177 – 2510 Calle de Parian, submitted by Stephan Carrasco, a request for a zoning permit to allow installation of two antique wood gates and a six foot high rock wall to be constructed along the west edge of a residential property at this a...
	9. Case 061178– 2957 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Vivian Herrera; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to enclose an existing patio on the east side of a dwelling located on a legal non-conforming 0.45 acre parcel at this address. ...
	10. Case 061179 – 2532 Calle de Cura, submitted by Ralph Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to allow a small tool shed on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)
	11. Case 061180– 2149 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Gabriel Quintana; A request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to construct a 30 foot by 22 foot (660 square feet) freestanding carport on a 12,632 square foot residential property at th...
	12. Case 061181 – 2750 Via Grande, submitted by Victor Sloan; a request for a zoning permit to allow the installation of a 20 foot by 40 foot inground pool behind an existing dwelling at this address. Zoned Rural Farm (RF)
	13. Case 061182– 1717 Boutz Road, Apartments 3 & 4, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning permit to allow the applicant to repair and repaint the exterior stucco and close off two exterior doors on two apartments at this address. Zoned Hist...
	VI.  PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS
	3.1.21 PZHAC AGENDA MINUTES.pdf
	THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, MARCH 1, 2021 AT 2:30 PM. TO JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346- 248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 1...
	II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM
	Commission Chairperson Lucero and Commissioners Salas, Nevarez, and Prieto were present. Commissioner Houston was absent. There was a quorum.
	Larry Shannon (Mesilla Staff) Tom Maese (Chief Inspector-CID)
	III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
	IV.  *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA
	A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Meeting of February 16, 2021.
	Approved as part of the Consent Agenda.
	Commissioner Nevarez made a motion to approve Permit 061168 with the condition stated, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and approved by the PZHAC by a vote of 4 – 0.
	II. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS:
	Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by phone and pressing *9 while in th...
	1. Case 061169 – 2445 Calle de Santa Ana, submitted by Jack and Lisa Kirby; a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)
	Staff provided a brief review of this request. There were no issues.  Tom Maese stated that no permits were needed from CID. Staff stated that it would be a good idea if CID could inspect the foundation prior to construction of the wall. Commissioner ...
	2. Case 061170 – 1915 Calle Pacana, submitted by Charles and Marilyn McMurry; a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction of a rock wall around the residential property at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)
	Staff provided a brief review of this request. A question was brought up as tp how the applicant was going to handle the irrigation easement that the wall would have to go over at the rear of the property. It was determined by the PZHAC that a decisio...
	VI.  PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS
	There were no comments.

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Drawing for drainage ditch detail.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	lett port


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



